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HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPCRT

To the Members of Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Clix Capital
Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate Ind AS financial statements and
based on the other financial information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, their consolidated
loss (including other comprehensive income), their consolidated changes in equity and their
consalidated cash ftows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143{10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 40.2.3 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which explains
the management’s evaluation of the financial impact due to COVID-19 pandemic. The assessment of
the impact is highly subjective and dependent upon the circumstances as they evolve.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

from firm Haribhakti & Co, FRN; 103523W}

3rd Floor, 52-B Okhla Industrial Area, Phase lll, New Delhi - 110 020, India, Tel:+91 11 4711 9999 Fax:+91 11 4711 9998
Registered offica: 705, Leeta Business Park, Andheri-Kurta Road, Andheri (E}, Mumbai - 400 059, Indfa.

Other offices: Ahmedabad, Bengalury, Chennai, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai,



HARIBHAKTI & CO. LL.P

Chartered Accountants

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit

matter
Impairment of Financials assets {as described in Note 7.3 of the Consolidated ind AS financial
statements)
The Group's impairment provision for {e Auditors of the subsidiary and our audit
financial assets is based on the expected procedures  included considering  the
credit loss (ECL) approach laid down under accounting policies for impairment of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. ECL financial  instruments and  assessing

involves an estimation of probability- compliance with the policies in terms of ind

weighted loss on the financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the
credit quality of its financial assets (loans
and advances). In the process, a significant
degree of judgement has been applied by
the management in respect of following
matters:

a. Defining thresholds for significant
increase in credit risk {SICR}) and
‘default’.

b. Grouping of leans under homogenous
pools to determine probability of
default on a collective basis and
calculation of past default rates.

c. Estimation of management overlay
for macro-economic factors which
could impact the credit quality of
the loans.

Considering the evolving nature of the
COVID-19 pandemic, which has continued to
impact the Group’s business operations,
resulting in higher loan losses, the Group has
considered management overlay as part of
its ECL, to reflect among other things the
increased risk of deterioration in macro-

AS 109 and the governance framework
approved by the Boards of Directors of the
Company and of the subsidiary pursuant to
various Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

Read and assessed the Group's policy with
respect to one-time restructuring offered to
customers pursuant to the "Resolution
Framework 2.0 for COVID-19-related Stress
of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises”
issued by RBI on May 5, 2021 and tested the
implementation of such policy on a sample
basis.

Assessed the assumptions used by the Group
for grouping and staging of loan portfolio
into various categories and default buckets
and their appropriateness for determining
the probability of default (PD) and loss-
given default (LGD) rates.

Key aspects of our testing inctuded the
following:-

» Tested controls for staging of loans
based on their past-due status. Also
tested samples of stage 1 and Stage 2
loans to assess whether any loss
indicators were present requiring them
to be classified under higher stages.

» Assessed the additional considerations
applied by the management for staging
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economic factors.

Given the unigue nmature of the pandemic
and the extent of its economic impact which
depends on future developments including
governmental and regulatory measures and
the Group’s responses thereto, the actual
credit loss can be different than that being
estimated.

In view of the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of
impairment allowance it is considered as a
key audit matter,

of loans as SICR or default categories in
view of Group's policy on one-time
restructuring.

Tested samples of the input data used
for determining the PD and LGD rates
and agreed the data with the
underlying books of account and
records.

Tested assumptions used by the
management in  determining the
overlay for macro-economic factors
{including COViID-19 pandemic).

» Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of  ECL  provision
performed by the Company.

> Verified the disclosures made in the Ind
AS financial statements in respect of
ECL as required under Ind AS 107 and
109,

» Inquiring with auditors of the subsidiary
about the above matters and seeking
the explanations based on their audit
procedures.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's Director’s report, but
does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements, consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consotidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Holding Company’s Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Continuation Sheet
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directars of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid

In preparing the consolidated ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financiat
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resutting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

Continuation Sheet
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit-
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, have adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists retated to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entity included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsibte for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we jdentify during our
audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated ind AS financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely




HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of one subsidiary, whose ind AS financial
statements reflects total assets of Rs 27,482 lacs as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Rs
4,128 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 5,368 lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS financial statements
have been audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in
terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditor.

(b) The audit of consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, was
carried out and reported by the Group’s predecessor auditors’ M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associate
LLP, vide their unmodified audit report dated June 29, 2021, whose report has been furnished
to us by the management and which has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Qur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies {Auditors’
Report) Order, 2020 (the 'CARO') issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, to be inctuded in the Auditors’ report, according to the information and explanations
given to us, and based on the CARO report issued by us for the Holding Company and taking into
consideration the report of other auditor on separate Ind AS financial statements of the
subsidiary, included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company to
which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report in “Annexure 1" the details of the
qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the aforesaid CARQ reports.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report
of the other auditor on separate Ind AS financial statements and the other financial information
of subsidiary, as noted in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowtedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;
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¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary, incorporated in India,
none of the directars of the Group companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financiat
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 2”;

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Holding Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration is not applicable;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us;

(1) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 34 to the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements;

(ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts
including derivative contracts;

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company,
incorporated in India,

(iv) (a) Based on our audit report on separate Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company incorporated in India, and consideration of report of the other auditor on
separate Ind AS financial statements of its subsidiary company incorporated in India,
whose financial statements have beeh audited under the Act, the management of the
Holding Company and the respective management of the subsidiary, have represented
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (efther from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shatl, whethet, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
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or entities identified in any manner whatsgever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) Based on our audit report on separate Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company incorporated in India, and consideration of report of the other auditor on
separate Ind AS financial statements of its subsidiary company incorporated in india,
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the management of the
Holding Company and the respective management of the subsidiary have represented
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company and its subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) {c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, and consideration of report of the other auditor on separate Ind AS
financial statements of the subsidiary company, incorporated in India, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and {b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Holding Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Further,
based on the audit report of the subsidiary Company, incorporated in India, no dividend
has declared nor paid during the year. Hence, reporting the compliance with section 123
of the Act is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.1035W { W100048

Kunj B. Agrawal
Partner

Membership No. 095829
UDIN: 22095829AJXLRQ7072

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 30, 2022

Continuation Sheet
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Reguirements’ section

in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Clix Capital Services Private
Limited on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the reports issued under
the Order by:

i) us for the Holding Company and

ii} the respective auditor of the subsidiary;

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company, to which reporting

under the Order is applicable, the details of qualifications or adverse remarks are as below:

Sr, Name CIN Holding Clause number
No. Company of the CARO
/Subsidiary report which is
JAssociate /Joint | qualified or
Venture adverse
1 | Clix Capital Services U65929DL1994pT | Holding i(c)
Private Limited C116256

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Partner

Membership No.095829

Kunj B. Agrawal

UDIN: 22095829AJXLRQ7072

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 30, 2022

Continuation Sheet
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ section
in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Clix Capital Services Private
Limited on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Clix Capital
Services Private Limited {“Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we
have audited the internal financial controls with-reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company, and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financiat
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance
Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preventicn and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend cn the
auditor’s judgement, inctuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditor, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of Holding Company, and its subsidiary company.

Continuation Sheet
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference fo financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention of timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of coflusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and actording to the explanations given to us and
based on consideration of reporting of other auditor as mentioned in Other Matters paragraph
betow, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesald reports under section 143(3)(i} of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it
relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditor of that company incorporated in India.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

=N
Kunj B. Agrawa

Partner
Membership No, 095829
UDIN: 22095829AJXLRQ7072

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 30, 2022

Continuation Sheet



Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Consolldated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

{All amount In INR iacs, except for shore data unless stated otherwise]

Particulars Notes Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents BA 28,725 11,204
Bank balance other than included in above 6B 17,648 12,330
Loans 7 3,43,087 3,90,545
Investments B 41,815 49,425
Cther financial assets 9 2,635 5,591
Nan- financal assets
Current tax assets (net} 28 6,044 5,087
Deferred tax assats {net} 29 17,839 14,830
Property, plant and equipment 104 5,404 10,519
Intangikle assets under development 11A 793 478
Goadwill 108 36,768 36,768
Other intangible assets 10B 2,382 3,467
Right-of-use asseis 11B 593 1,436
Other non- financial assets 12 4,494 4,183
Assets held for sale 505 511
Total assets 5,08,732 5,46,374
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial lTakilities
Payables . 13
1) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enferprises - -
& small enterprises
h) Total outstanding duas of creditors other 8,139 7,687
than micro entergrises & smalt enterprises
i) Gther payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 37
& small erterprises
b} Total cutstanding dues of creditors cther 7,769 4,568
than micra enterprises & small enterprises
Debt securities 14 78,625 1,38,381
Borrowings (other than debt securities} . 15 1,97,286 1,69,736
Lease ltabilities 11C 795 1,750
Other financial liabilities ' 16 11,219 10,680
Non financial liabilities
Provisions Y 3,384 3,211
Other non-financial liabitilies 18 2,648 2,180
Tatal liabilities 3,083,902 3,38,203
Equity
Equity share capital 19 1,43,599 1,43,599
Other equity 20 55,231 64,572
Total equity -1,98,330 2,08,171
Total liabilities and equity 5,08,732 5,46,374
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consclidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
ICAl Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048
Chartered Accountants

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Clix Capltal Services Private Limited

Rakesh Kaul -
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: D3386665

Kunj B. Agrawd
Partner
Membership No.: 095829

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022

Place; Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2022

Rashmi Mohanty

CFO and Whote Time Director

DIN: 07072541

o

Ashhish K Paanday
Company Secretary

Membership Mo: A23155



Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lucs, except for shure data unless stated otherwise)

particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
artie 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations
Interest income 21 65,762 58,290
Rental income 3,456 6,438
Fees and commission Income 22 3,443 2,731
Net gain on fair value changes 23 2,855 535
Net galh on de-recognition of financial instruments under 355 1,446
amortised cost category
Total revenue from operations 65,971 79,440
Qther Income 24 2,614 4,300
Total income 68,585 83,740
Expensas
Finance costs 25 29,248 34,542
Fees and commission expensa 561 390
Impairment on financial instruments 26 29,117 23,557
Employee henefits expense 27 8,377 9,553
Depraciation and amortization 104, 108 & 11B 4,930 7,410
Other expenses 28 9,209 6,354
Total expenses 81,442 81,806
Profitf{lass) before tax {12,857) 1,934

Tax expense: 29

{1} Current tax 16 2,821

{2} Current tax for earlier years )] -

{3) Deferrad Tax {3,022} 2,173

Profit/(loss) for the year {9,847) 1,286

Other comprehenslve incoma

a. Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit llabllity 66 69
Income tax relating to Items that will not ke reclassified to profit or loss {13) (16}

h. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income 53 53
Total comprehensive income for the year [9,794) 1,339
Earnings per equity share 30

Basic (INR) (0.69} 0.00

Dituted {INR) {0.69) 0.09

Nomina! value per shara {INR) 10,02 10.00
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our raport of even date

For Haribhalcti & Co. LLP

Kunj B. Agrawal
Partner
Membership Ne.: 095829

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022

For and anh behalf of the Board of Directors
Clix Capltal Services Private Limited

Rakesh Kaui

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 03386655

Place; Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2022

il Wk

Rashmi Mohanty
CFO and Whele Time Director
DIN: 07072541

y\
AshM?Paanday

Company Secretary
Membership No: A23155
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Year endled Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/{Loss) hefore tax (12,857) 1,934
Adjusted for:
Provisicns/ liabilities no longer requived written back (102) (335)
Depreciation and amortisation 4,930 7,410
Finance cost on unwinding of discount on security deposits 140 180
Impairment.on financial assets 695 13,873
Impairment of investments 1,540 -
Provision for employee benefits 42 100
Premium on redemption of preference shares - (26)
Interest on income-tax refund {1,417) (2,030)
Net loss/{gatn} on de-recognition of property, plant and equipment 3 {219)
Provision for indirect taxes 353 16
Bad debt written off 28,302 9,679
Lease equalisation reserve (40} {257)
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit {140} {193)
Interest income on fixed deposits (772) {759}
Met gain on fair value changes (2,955} {535)
Share based payments 453 {8)
Operating profit before working capital changes 18,145 28,830
Adfusted for net changes In working capltal
Decrease in Financial assets and non-financial assets 21,528 2,309
Increase in Financia! liability and other liabilities 4,492 9,067
(Income tax paid)/taxes refund received [net) 448 8,093
Net Cash generated from operating. activities 44,613 48,299
Cash flows from investing activities
Movement of mutual funds (net) 27,995 (45,576)
Purchase of investments (Debt securities) Co- {7,500}
Sale of Investments (Debt securities) - 23,454
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,751} {3,638)
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 3,221 3,346
sale of Investments {Equity Shares) 776 -
Purchase of security receipts {net) {19,628) -
Investment in fixed deposits more than 90 days maturity {5,318) (8,248)
Interest income on fixed deposits 772 759
Net Cash generated fram / {used in} investing activities 6,067 (37,403}




Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 5,000
Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures 16,295 38,289
Repayment of Non Convertible Debentures {83,160} (59,208}
Proceeds from Borrowing against Securitised Portfolio 45,975 35,329
Repayment of Borrowing against Securitised Portfolic {34,721} {12,302)
Net decrease of Lease liability (954) (1,359)
Proceeds from term loan 83,415 71,310
Repayment of term loan (66,025) {1,10,115)
Proceeds from comimercial papers 14,278 -
Repayment of commercial papers (7,168} -
Net Cash used in financing activities (32,065) {33,056}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,615 {22,160)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,050 30,210
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26,665 8,050
Notes :
Components of cash and cash equivalents balance include:
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts 14,724 10,254
- In deposits with original Maturity of less than three months 14,001 950
Bank overdraft 12,060) {3,154)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26,665 8,050

For Haribhakti & Co, LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W/W 100048
Chartered Accountants

Kunj B, Agrawal
Partner

Membership No.: 095829

Place: New Deihi
Date: 30 May 2022

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Ra kesh}aul

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 03386665

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2022

Rashmi Mohanty
CFO and Whele Time Director

DiN: 07072541 \g,} ’
Ashhish K‘ﬁ;

Company Secretary
Membership No: A23155




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data uniess stated otherwise)

Corporate information

Clix Capital Servicas Private Limited (Formerly GE Money Financial Services Private Limited) {*CCSPL") (‘the Holding Company’) Is a private limited
company domiciled in India and incorporated on 11 February 1994 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 with CIN-
U65929DL1994PTC116256. The Holding Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company "Systematically Important Non-Deposit Taking Company"
registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI') with Registration No. B-14.02950. The Holding Company is primarily engaged in Micro, Small and
Medium enterprise (MSME) ,consumer and commercial lending. The Holding Company does not accept deposits from the public. The Holding
Company's registered office is at Ath floor, Kaitash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Connaught Place New Dethi.

During the current financial year, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company In its meeting dated 04 June 2021, had approved a scheme of
.amalgamation {“the Scheme”) with Clix Finance India Private Limited, one of its wholly owned subsidiary company into the Holding Company. The
Schame has been approved by the Central Government (Regicnal Director, Northern Region) on 25 March 2022 with effect from 01 April 2021
{“Appointed Date”) and pursuant to the Scheme, the Group has filed the said Order of Central Government {Regionai Director, Northern region)
approving the scheme of Amalgatation with the Reglistrar on 01 April 2022 (“Effective Date”). The said amalgamation has been accounted for as
per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 "Buslness Combination” also refer note 55.

During the financial year 2016-17, the Holding Group has also Incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary Clix Housing Finance Limited (*Clix
Housing'), formerly known as Clix Housing Finance Private Limited.

The Holding Company along with Its subsidiary {both incorporated in india) has been referred to as "the Group".

(i) Basis of preparation

The Consolidated financial statements (herein referred to as 'CFS') of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the'Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act}.

(i} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held for trading and financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

{lii} Presentation of financial statements
The Group presants its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance
sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, the Group has unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent an a future event, the parties also Intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

A. The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its counterparties.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stafed otherwise)

(iv) Basis of consclidation

The CFS comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary as at 31 March 2022 including controlled structured entities, The Group
consolidates a subsiciary when it controls it. Contral is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. '

Geanerally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumpticn and when the Group has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumsiances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

(ii} Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

{ili) The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

{iv) The size of the Graup’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consalidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control untll the date the Group ceasas to control the subsidiary.

Consclidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and othey events in similar circumstances.
If & member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
events in sitnilar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of subsidiary used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reportlng date as that of the parent Company,
i.e., year ended on 31 March 2022.

Consolidation procedure:

a. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose,
income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
at the acquisition date.

h. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in its subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of its subsidiary.

¢, Eliminate In fuil intragroup assets and labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
(profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).
Intragroup losses may Indicate an Impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies
to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and fo the non-controlling interasts,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies. Al intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

{i) Derecognises the assats {Including goodwill} and liabilities of the subsidiary

{ii) Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

(iii} Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

(iv) Recognises the fair value of the consideration recelved

(v) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

(vi} Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

{vii) Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the refated assets or liabilities.

A change in the ownarship interest ofﬁ subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for shore data unless stated otherwise)

Significant accounting policies

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financiel statements in confoermity with Ind AS reguires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liahilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their affect are distlosed in the notes to the financial statements.

_Also, refer note 4 for significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used by the Group.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, other demand deposits ‘with banks and highly liquid
investments with maturity period of three months or less from the date of investment.

3.3 Recognition of income and expense

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer; A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights
and ohligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with
a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. )

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligatian, the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

a) interest and similar income

Interest income, for all financial instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, is recorded using the effective Interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amaunt of the financial
asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees
or incremental costs that are directly attributable and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

b) Foreclosure charges and other fees
Foreclosura charges and other fees which include cheque bounce charges, penal fee, legal charges and prepayment charges etc. are recognised as
income when there is certainty regarding the receipt of payment.

¢) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend.

d} Lease rental income
Lease rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in rental income in
the statement of profit or loss, unlgss_the increase is in fine with expected general inflation, in which case lease income is recognised based on
centractual terms.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount In INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

e) Debt advisory fees
Revenue from contract with customer is recognised point in time when performance obiigation is satisfied (when the trade is executed). Thase
include debt advisory fees which is charged per transaction executed.

3.4 Foreign currency
The CFS are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which is also the Group’s functional currency.

Transactions in foraign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction
first qualifies for recognition. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized In the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value is determined. The galn or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e,, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCl or profit or ioss, respectively),

3.5 Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities. The Group has also entered into certain cost
sharing arrangements for resources shared with cther entities. The costs allocated to the Group under the cost sharing arrangements are
included in the respective expenses. The costs allocated to other entities under the cost sharing arrangement are shown as amounts recoverable
from the respective parties.

a) Interest expense

Interest expense includes issua costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the
expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external
lagal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial fiability.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment {PPE} and Intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Gther repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when Incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference batween the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) Is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Group,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impalrment losses, if any.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Alf amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.7 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

(i) Owned assets

{a) Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease term as stated in the lease agreement or useful life of the asset whichever is lower.

{b) Depraciation on other owned fixed assets Is provided on straight line method at the rates, computed based on estimated useful life of those
assets as prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

- Computers - 3 years
- Office equipment - 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures - 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if approgpriate.

{i§) Assets given on operating lease
Assets given on operating lease are depreciated to their residual value as estimated by the management, cn a straight-line basis over the
expacted useful life of the asset or lease term, whichever is lower.

(ill) Assets taken on finance lease
Assets taken on finance lease are being depreciated on the straight-line method to a residual value over the lease term or useful life, whichever is
lower. in the opinion of the management, the aforesaid depreciation rates reflect the econamic useful lives of the fixed assets.

{iv) Computer software and Goodwill

Computer software are amortised using the straight line method over the Management's estimate of useful life during which the benefits are
expected to accrue . The useful lives of Computer software are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The
estimated usefullife considered by the Group for Computer Software 5 to 10 years. Goodwill is tested for impairment in accordance with
Applicable Ind AS at each Balance Sheet date,

{v) Intangible assets under development

The Group recognises internally generated intangible assets when it is certain that the future economic benefit attributable to the use of such
intangible assets are probable to flow to the Group and the expenditure incurred for devefopment of such intangible assets can be measured
reliably. The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to create, produce, and prepare
the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The cartying amount of asseis Is reviewed at each balance sheet date iIf there Is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors.
An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the assets, net sefling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
in determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR locs, except for share data unless stoted otherwise)

3.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, It Is probable that an
outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required o
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provisien due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.10 Contingent liabilities and assets

The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent liability is disclosed in the
case of:

- A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying aconomic benefits will be
required to setile the obligation : '

- A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

- A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outfiow of resources is remote

Contingent Jiabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset Is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

3.11 Retirement and other employee benefits
The Group’s abligation towards various employee benefits has been recognised as follows:

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payahle/ available within twelve menths of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits
such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss In the period in which the employee renders the related
service,

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regional provident fund
commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan
The Group pays gratuity to employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five years of continuous service. The Group makes
contributions to its own Gratuity Trust. The gratuity trust invests the contribution in insurer managed schame.

Other long-term benefits - Compensated absences

Entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees, Balance Ieaves if any can be encashed at the time of retirement/
termination of employment. The Group determines the Hability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation as at
the year end.

The liahility in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits is accrued in the hooks of account on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit kability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liahility), are

recognised immediately in the balance sheet W|1.h a correspondmg debit or credlt to retained ear q s-fti'u:ough OCl in the period in which they
5 S
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3.12 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961,
Income Cormputation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax faws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit ot loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax Items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) pald in accordance with the tax laws, which during the specified period gives future economic benefits in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will
flow to the Group.

Deferred tax

Daferred tax is recognised using the asset-Habllity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are rtecognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
tamporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit wilt be avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitias are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacied af the reporting date.

Defarred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income ar in equity). Deferred tex items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3,13 Earning per share : -

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that
they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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3.14 Share based payments

Equity-settfed share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date.

The falr value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting
pericd, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a correspending increase in equity. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve. '

The dilutive effact of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of dituted 2arnings per share.
3.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument Is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

3.15.1 Financial Assets

3.15.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to custcmers, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to
the customers. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the
management’s intention when acquir'ing them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3,15.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Debt instruments at amortised cost

® Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTOCI)

. Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

° Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

3.15.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are mat:

« The asset is hald within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortisad cost using the effective interest rate {EIR} method less
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is Included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.15.1.4 Debt instruments at FVOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

- The objective of the business model Is achieved hoth by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent S5PPI,

Debt instruments included within the FYTOC!| category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCH. However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment |osses
& reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
00l is reclassified from the equity to R&l-interest

method.,
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3.15.1.5 Debt instruments at FYTPL

FVIPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt Instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such elaction is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

3.15.1.6 Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For
all other equity instrumeants, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subseguent changes in
the fair value. The Group makes such election on an insirument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC), then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognized In the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recoghized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.15.2 Financial Liabilities

3.15.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial flabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for
trading or it is designated as on initlal recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
barrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial
instruments.

3.15.2.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liahilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hadge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financlal liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the Initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabitities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own ceedit risk are recognized in OC!, These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such iability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.15.2.3 Loans and borrowings

After inttial recognition, interest-bearing loans and horrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrawings.
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3.15.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liahilities It

The Group doesn't reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liahilities are never reclassified.

3.15.4 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.15.4,1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

Tha Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the medification of terms and conditions have been renegotiated to
the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference racognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the originat EIR, the Group records a modification gain or loss,
to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

3.15.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is derecognised when the rights to
recaive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

- The Group has transferrad its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or'
- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset {the
‘originat asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the 'eventual recipients’), when all of the
following three conditions are met:

-The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has coflected equivalent amounts from the original asset
excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

- The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual reciplents.

- The Group has to remit any cash flows It collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned,
during the period betwaen the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for deracognition if either:
- The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
-The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated
third party and is able to exercise that abllity unilaterally and withcut imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially ail the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset
continues to be recognised only to the extant of the Group’s continuing Involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the asscciated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Group could be required to pay.

0

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option {or beth} on the transferred asset, the continuing involvement is
measured at the value the Group would be required to pay upon repurchase. In the case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at
fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option
exercise price.

3.15.4.2 Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischargad, cancelled or expires.Where an existing financial lability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liakility are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new fiability. The difference baetween the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

3,16 Impairment of financial assets

3.16.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The Group Ts recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with
ioan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, {in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’). Equity instruments are not
subject to impairment under IND AS 108

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset {the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit
loss (12mECL).

The 12mECL Is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from defauit events on a financial instrument that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 1ZmECLs are calcutated on collective basis.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increasad significantly since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Group groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Group recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the
credit risk has Improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase.in credit risk since origination, the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs.
Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired {as outlined in Note 7). The Group records an allowance for the LTECLs
For financial assets for which the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding amount, or a

the financial asset is reduced. This is considered .%Q'Q"Etg_‘aklj--glerecognition of the financial asset.
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3.16.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Group calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanism of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
.Probability of Defauit {PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihoad of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
happen af a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

+ Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of exposure at default date,

. Loss Given Default {LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. it is based
on the difference betwean the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to recelve, including from the realisation of any
collataral. It is usuaily expressed as a percentage of the EAD. B

The maximum period far which the credit losses are determined is the expacted life of a financial instrument.
The mechanism of the ECL method are sumimarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Group calculates the the 12mECL allowznce based on the expactation of a default
occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a EAD and muitiplied by
the expected LGD .

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs.
The mechanisim are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-irr;ba'lred {as outlined in Note 7), the Group recognizes the lifetime expecled credit losses for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

3.16.3 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments cccurring in the economy and the market it
operates in. On a perlodic basis, the Group analyses If there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates,
banchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based on its internal data.
While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are
embeddad in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

3.16.4 Collateral repossessed
The Group's policy is to sell repossessed assets. Non financial assets repossessed are transferred to assets held for sale at fair value less cost to
sell or principal outstanding, whichever is less, at repossession date.

3.16.5 Write-offs ]

Financial assets are writien off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the recovery. if the
amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss aflowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is
then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit and loss account.

3,17 Fair value measurement

The Group meastres financial instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:
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- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ahility to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling It to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is directly or indirectly
observable.

- Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and llabilities that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
accurred between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3.18 Dividend

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Group. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Group's Board of Directors.

3,19 Leases

Measurement of Lease Liahility ‘ ' .

At the time of initial recognition, the Group measures lease liability as present value of all lease payment discounted using the Group's
incremental cost of borrowing rate. Subsequently, the lease liability is

(i) increased by interest on lease liability; and

(i) Reduced by lease payment made;

Measurement of Right-of-Use asset

At the time of initial recognition, the Company measures 'Right-of-Use assets’ which comyrises of amount of initial recognition of lease liability,
initial direct cost and cost of dismantling and restoration . Subsequently, ‘Right-of-Use assets' are measured using cost model i.e. at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability specified in Ind A5 116
Leases’.

Depreciation on 'Right-of-Use assets’ is provided on straight line basis over the lease period.
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3.20 Business Combination

A Common control business combination, involving entities or business in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately
cantrolled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and where control is not transitory, is accounted for in
accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 103 '

“Business Combination”.

Business combinations involving entities or business under commeon control are accounted for using the pooling of interest method as follows:

- The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts, ’

- No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities, Adjustments are made only to harmonize significant
accounting policies.

- The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior period are restated as if the business combination had occurred from the
heginning of the preceding period in the financlal statements, lrrespective of the actual date of the combination.

- The identity of the reserves are preserved and appear in the financial statements of the transferee in same form in which they appeared in the
financial statements of the transferor.

The difference between the amount of investment in the Equity shares of the Transferor Group appearing the books of account of the Transferee
Group and the amount of issued, subscribed and paid up share capital standing credited in the books of accounts of the Transferor Group and
reserve as on the date of acquiring control in the books of accounts of the Transferor Group shall be accou nted in accordance with Appendix C of
Ind AS -103 read with LCAI ITFG clarification Bulletin 9 and is presented separately in the financials.

3.21 Asset held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than
through continuing use) when the asset is available for immediate sale in its prasent condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sale of such asset and the sale is highly probable and is expected to gualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification. They are measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Non -curreit assets are hot depreciated while they are classified as held for sale and are presented separately from other assets in the balance
sheet.
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Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

4.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The Group determines the
business model at a level that reflects how financial assets of the Group are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised pricr to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the business medel for which the remaining financial assets
are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business medel and 50 a prospective change
to the classificatinn nf thnse assets

4,2  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal {(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the
use of valuation modals. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of fiquidity and model inputs related to items such as
credit risk (both own and counterparty), correlation and volatility.

4.3 Effective Interest Rate {EIR) method

The Group's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of
return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / borrowings taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the preduct life cycle {including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This estimation, by
nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s
base vate and ather fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

4.4 Impairment loss on financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These estimates are driven bv a number of factors, changzes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group's ECL calculations are outputs of complex modeis with a number of undarlying assumptions regarding the choice of varlable inputs and
their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Group’s internal model, which assigns PDs.

- The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so alilowances for financial asseis should be measured
on a LTECL basis and the gualitative assessment. :

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and
the effect on PDs, EADS and LGDs.

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models,

- Recognition of the potential impact of COVID-19 in the Company’s collective provision as outlined in Note 40.2.3

It has been tha Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

4.5 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These Include the determination of the discount rate, future satary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share dota unless stated otherwise}

4.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions reguires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

4.7 Provisions and other contingent liabilities
The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As
a‘result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in.the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

When the Group can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable,
the Group records a provision against the case, Where the probahility of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, hut a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Group takes into account a number of factors
Including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on
these estimates.

4.8 Leases

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant
judgment. The Group uses significant judgemeant in assessing the lease term {including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The
Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an
option to terminate a lease, it considers all refevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

- 5 Raecent Indian Accounting Standards / Pronouncements issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, applicable fraom 01 April 2022, as below:

a) Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Groug does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements

b) Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment ameounts received from selling items
produced while the Group is preparing the asset for its intended use, Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit
or loss., The Group does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and eguipment in its financial
statements

¢} Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Group does not expact the amendment
to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

d) Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendmaent clarifies which fee an entity includes when it applies the “10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 6A: Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks in current accounts 14,724 10,254
In deposits with original maturity of less than three months 14,001 950
_ _ 28,725 11,204

Note 6B: Bank balance other than above ‘
Earmarked balances with bank* 17,648 12,330
17,648 12,330
Total 46,373 23,534

* Earmarked balances with bank are held as Margin money/ are under lien. The Group has the complete beneficial interest
on the income earned from these deposits.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance with banks in current accounts 14,724 10,254
In deposits with original maturity of less than three months 14,001 950
Bank Overdraft (refer note -15} (2,060} (3,154)

26,665 8,050
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As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 7: Loans

In India

At Amortised cost
Term loans 3,58,694 4,03,887
Finance lease receivables 7,136 10,333
Total {A) Gross 3,65,830 4,14,220
Lass: tmpairment loss allowance 22,743 23,675
Total (A) Net 3,43,087 3,90,545
Secured * 1,44,270 2,05,765
Unsecured” 2,21,560 2,08,455
Total {B) Gross 3,65,830 4,14,220
Less: Impairment loss allowance 22,743 23,675
Total {B) Net 3,43,087 3,90,545

Loans in India
Public sector - -

Others : 3,65,830 " 4,14,220
Total (C} Gross 3,65,830 4,14,220
Lass: Impatrment loss allowance 22,743 23,675
Total (C) Net 3,43,087 3,90,545
I

* Secured by tangible assets (hypothecation of equipment's, plant and machinery, vehices, equitable mortgage of immovable property, pledge of
securities, trade receivables, etc.).

# Unsecured loans includes loan assats amounting to INR 16,581 {31 March 2021: 10,634} which are alsc backed by gurantee by government
under various schemes.

(i) Leans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Group The carrying value
may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

(i} No Loans or Advances are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other person, that
are:

(a) repayable on demand or

{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

{iii}) Finance |ease recelvable

Assets given under finance lease have been recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in lease. Reconciliation between
the total gross investment in leases and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as
follows: N

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of minimum lease payments receivable 6,050 9,572
Add: Un-guaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the lessor 1,239 1,311
Add: Unearned finance income 1,083 2,291

Gross investment In finance lease 8,372 13,174
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The maturity profile of the finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Mintmum Present Minimum Present value

lease value lease

payments payments
Receivable within one year 4,552 3,940 4,632 3,591
Receivable between 1-5 years 3,820 3,349 8,312 7,074
More than 5 year - - 230 218
Total 8,372 7,289 13,174 10,883

During the year, an amount of INR 1,074 was recognized as income from finance leases in the statement of profit and loss (31 March 2021: INR
1,460).

{lii} Transferlof Financial assets

Transfers of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

Securitisation:

The Group uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transactions generally result in the transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios
of financial assets to holders of issued debt securities, Securitisation has resulted In the continued recognition of the securitised assets.

The table beiow outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their
entirety and associated liabilities,

Loans and advances measurad at amortised cost As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

i f transferred t sured at
Cainrrylrlg ameunt of tra assets maa a 61729 46,866
arhortised cost
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 54,394 43,140

. The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Transfer of financial assets that are derecognised in thelr entirely
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has sold some loans and advances measured at amortised cost as per assignment deals, as a
source of finance. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transfesred to the buyer, the
assets have been derecognised from the Group’s balance sheet.
The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future business
plan, the Group business madel remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows. ’

The carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets not in default category measured at amortised cost as on date of transfer during year is
INR 2,415 (31 March 2021: 15,697) and consideration received for such transfer is INR 2,415 (31 March 2021 15,697} respectively.

The net carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets under in stressed category measured at amortised cost as on date of fransfer during
year is INR 24,845 (31 March 2021: Nil) and consideration received for such transfer is INR 23,847 {31 March 2021: Nil} respectively.
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Note 7.2 Loan Commitment

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loan

commitment is, as follows:

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 202{-21
Gross carrying amount opening balance 963 88
New assets originated 287 963
Assets disbursed/cancelled {719) (88}
Gross carrying amount closing balance 531 963
Reconciliation of ECL balances is given below:

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21%
ECL allowance - opening balance 5 0
New assets originated 1 5
Assets dishursed/cancelled {3) (0)
ECL allowance - closing balance ) 3 5

Modified Financial Assets

The Group renegotiates loans given to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as forbearance activities, restructuring
or rescheduling} to improve the potential of repayment by the borrower maximize collection opportunities and to minimise
the risk of default. Under the Companies ferbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the customer
is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the customer made all reasonable
efforts to pay under the orlginal contractual terms and the customer is expected to be able to meet the revised terms, The
revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the terms of
loan covenants. The Senior team Risk Management Committee regularly reviews reports on forbearance activities and
performance. Upon renegotiation, such accounts are downgraded basis management assessment and are subsequently
upgraded to Stage 1 only upon observation of satisfactory repayments of one year from the date of such down-gradation
and accordingly loss allowance is measured using 12 month PD.

Pursuant to RBI Covid restructuring policy, accounts for which Covid restructuring facility were given have been classified fo
Stage 2 and corresponding staging wise ECL provision was done,




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR lacs, except for shore data unless stated otherwise)

Note 7.3 Impairment assessment
The references below show the Group’s impairment assessment and measurement approach as set out in these notes. It should be read in conjunction
with the summary of significant accounting policies.

- Definition of default and cure

The Graup considers a financial instrumens as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL calculations typically when the borrower
hecomas 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Group may also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there s significant deterioration in the loan collateral,
deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse markat conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental
effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an Instrument is in default, the Group also considers a variety of
instances that may indicate delay in or non repayment of the loan. When such events occur, the Group carefully considers whether the event should
result in treating the horrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Classification of
accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basts and typically accounts where contractual repayments are move than 30 days past due are classified
in stage 2.

It is the Group’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 2 when none of the default criteria are present.
The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether
this indicates there has been a significant reduction in credit risk.

- Probability of default :
The credit rating provided by the external rating agencies/account level delinguency/ internal matrix has been considerad while assigning Probability of
Default (PD) at a portfotio level. The PDs are computed for homogenous portfolio segments.

- Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reparting date is considered as EAD by the Group, Considering that PD determined above faciors in amount at default,
there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

- Loss given defauit
The Group uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of calculating LGD. The estimated recovery
cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the NPV of the recoveries.

- Significant increase in credit risk .
The Group evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The Group also assesses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the previously risk
taking into consideration both qualitative and quantitative information . One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due or where existing terms are renegotiated.

One time restructuring {OTR) of loan accounts was permitted by RBI vide circulars dated 6 August 2020 'resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress'
and 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector — Restructuring of Advances' and circulars dated 5 May 2021 'Resolution Framework — 2.0:
Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Individuals and Small Businesses' and 'Resolution Framework 2.0 — Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro,
small and Medium Enterprises {MSMEs)'. The Group has considered OTR as an indicator of significant increase in credit risk and accordingly classified such
loans as stage 2.

- Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis
The Group calculates ECLs on Retail Portfolio at an obligor level whilst PD rates are applied on ¢collective basis and corporate nortfolio on individual basis.
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Note 7.4 Collateral ‘

The nature of products across these broad categories are either unsecured or secured by collateral. Although coliateral is an important risk mitigant of
credit risk, the Group’s practice is to lend on the basis of assessment of the customer’s ability to repay rather than placing primary reliance on collateral.
Based on the nature of product and the Group’s assessment of the customer’s credit risk, a loan may be offered with suitable collateral,

The Group hold collateral to mitigate credit risk associated with secured financial assets. The main type of collateral and type of assets these are
associated with are listed in the table below. The collateral presented relates to instruments that are measured at amortised cost.

Nature of Collateral As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Corporate-
Equity shares of the Company, personal guarantee of the director /
premaoter, charge against land and building and other collaterals such as 22,435 73,105
fixed assets, debtors, etc.
Retail-
Cars 203 670
Twao wheeler 2,171 9,786
Property 80,015 74,261
Healthcare equipments 32,440 37,836
Vehiclas, equipments, machinery, etc. 7,006 10,107
Total 1,442 2,05,765

The Group periodically monitars the market value of collateral and evaluates its exposure and loan to value metrics for high risk customers. The Group
axercises its right of repessession across all secured products but primarily in its two wheeler and user cars financing business. 1 also resorts to invaking
its right under the SARFAESI Act and other judicial remadies available against its mortgages and commercial lending business. For its corporaie leans
where collateral is shares, the Group recoups shortfall in value of shares through part recali of loans or additional shares from the customer, or sale of
underlying shares,

The Group did not held any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,
There was ne change in the Group's collaterat policy or collateral quality during the period.

Refer Note 40,2.2 for risk concentration based on "Rating and Industry analysis” for corporate portfolio and "Sub portfolio's and Secured/unsecured" for
retail portfolio.

7.5 - Risk assessment model

The Group has designad and operates its risk assessment mode! that factors in both quantitative as well as qualitative information on the loans and the
borrowers. Depending on the nature of the product, the model uses historical empirical data to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk
and segments the portfolio on the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller homogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit behavior.
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As at 31 March 2022

As ot 31 March 2021

Total

Amortised Fair value Others Amortised Fair value Others Total
cost through profit Cost through profit
or loss* or toss*

Note 8: Investments
Mutual funds 22,130 22,130 48,403 - 48,403
Equity shares 1,567 1,567 1,022 - 1,022
Securities receiptsH 19,628 19,628 - - -
Government securities - 1 - - 1
Total gross (A 43,325 43,326 49,425 - 49,426
Investments in India 43,325 43,326 1 49,425 - 49,426
Total [B) 43,325 43,326 1 49,425 - 49,426
Total (A} to tally with {B} 43,325 43,326 1 49,425 - 49,426
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C} 1,510 1,511 1 - - i
Total Net D = (A} -(C} - 41,815 41,855 - 49,425 - 49,425

*More infarmation regarding the valuation methodologies can be found in note 39,
# During the year Group has transferred stressed loan to ARC against security recelpts { refer to note 7). The Group has taken Allowance for Impairment loss of Rs. 1,510 as

on 31 March 2022 against these security receipts.

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022" 2021
Note 9: Other financial assets

Security deposit ' 340 674
Exgratia receivables - 660
Other financial assets 2,454 4,204
Less: Impalrment loss allowance {212} 115
Cperating lease recalvables 153 168
Total 2,635 5,591
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Clix Capital Services frivate Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[All amount in INR focs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at

As ot

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 118: Right-of-use assets

Opening balance of Right-of-usa assets 1,436 2,890
Add: Additions to right-of-use assets during the year 144 1,026
Less: Depreciation on right-of-use assets during the year (524) (868)
Less: Re-measuremant impact on right-of-use during the year {463) {1,612)
Closing balance of right-of-use assets 593 1,436
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 11C: Lease liahilities
Opening balance of lease liability 1,749 3,108
Add: Additions to lease liability during the year 144 1,026
Add: Interest cost charged during the year 153 260
Less: Lease rentals paid during the year (687) {950)
Less: Impact of Re-measurement of lease liabllity during the year {564) {1,695)
Closing balance of Lease liabilities 795 1,750
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 12: Dther non-financial assets
Prepald expenses 1,060 807
Minimum altaernate tax recoverable 2,053 2,053
Advance to suppliers 115 159
Less: Provision {50) {71
65 152
Balance with statutory and government authorities
- Considerad good 866 748
- Considered doubtful 1,847 2,285
Less: Provision (1,847} [2,285)
866 748
Security deposit
- Constdered doubtful 2 -
Less: Provision {2) -
Lease rental accrued but not due A50 423
Total 4,494 4,183
As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 13: Payables
Trade payables .
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smal! enterprisest - -
Total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and small 8,139 7,687
enterprises
Cther payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises# 37 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small 7,769 4,568
enterprises
Total 15,945 12,255




Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All arnount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

The ageing schedule for Trade payables due for payment: as at 31 March 2022-

Qutstanding for followlng periods from due date of paymenti#
Particular More than 3
Less than 1 year |1-2 years |2-3 years |years Total
[IIMSME - - - . -
(il)Others 8,138 - - - 8,139

{iii} Disputed dues - MSME

{iv} Disputed dues - Others

The ageing schedule for Trade payables due for payment: as at 31 March 2021-

Particular

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of paymenti

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

{IIMSME

{ii)Others

7,687

7587

{iii} Disputed dues — MSME

{iv) Disputed dues - Others

#Based on and to the extent of the Information received by the Group from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at the year-end are furnished below:

As at

Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end.

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, o the above amount as at the

year end

Payment made to suppiiers {other than interest) beyend the appointed day, during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act {other than Section 16}
Intarest pald to suppliers undar MSMED Act {Section 16)

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the vear end to suppliers under MSMED Act

37




Cllx Capital Services Private Limited
totes to Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount In INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

Note 14: Debt Securltles
At Amortised cost

Secured

Non-convertible debenturas”

- From Bank 12,636 32,026

- From Other parties 18,879 6,355
Unsecured

Commerclal paper

- From Bank 2,320 -

- From Qther parties 4,790 -

Non-convettible debentures

- From Cther parties 40,000 1,00,000
Total gross {A) 78,625 1,38,381
Debt securities in India 78,625 1,38,381
Debt securities outside India - -
Total (B} to tally with [A) 78,625 1,38,381

¥ NCD Is sacured by first pari passu and continutng charge on all current and future standard bock debts/receivabies of the Groug,

Non-covertible debentures - March 31, 2022

Original maturity of NCDs Dug within 1 Duelta2 More than 3
Due 2 to 3 years Total
{In no, of days} year years years
issued at par and redeemable at face value
385 - 730 6,200 3,000 - - 2,200
730 - 1095 - 5,500 - - 5,500
1095 - 1460 - - - - -
More than 1460 - 40,000 - - 40,060
Total 6,200 48,500 - - 54,700
- Interest rate ranges from 9.20% p.a. to 11.55% p.a. as at 31 March 2022,
Due within 1 Duelta2 More than 3
Qrlginal maturlty of NCDs {In no, of days) year years Diue 2 to 3 years years Total
1ssued at par and redeemable at premium -
365-730 12,610 4,440 - - 17,050
730 - 1085 - - - - -
1095 - 1460 - - - - -
More than 1460 - - - - -
Total 12,610 4,440 - - 17,050
- Interest rate ranges from 2.20% p.a. to 11.55% p.a. asat 31 March 2022,
- INR 235 difference is an account of EIR adjustment.
Non-covertible dehentures - March 31, 2021
Original maturity of NCDs Due within L Duelto2 More than 3
. Due 2 to 3 years Total
[in no. of days) year years years
Issued at par and redeemable at face vafue
365 - 730 22,500 10,620 - - 33,120
730 - 1095 30,000 - 5,500 - 35,500
1095 - 1450 20,000 - - - 20,000
More than 1460 - - 50,000 - 50,000
72,500 10,620 55,500 - 1,38,620
- Interest rate ranges from 9.25% p.a. to 13,65% p.a, as at 31 March 2022,
- INR 239 difference is on account of EIR adjustment.
Commerclal papers as at 31 March 2022 are repayable at par as follows:
Due within 1 Due Lto 2 More than 3
Criginal maturity of CPs (In no. of days) year years Due 2 to 3 years years Total
Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - -
Up to 365 7,500 - - 2,500
7,500

- discount rate ranges from 7 % p.a. to 9.10% p.a. as at 31 March 2022,
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All omount in INR lacs, except for share dato unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

Note 16: Gther financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due

- On term loan and non convertible debenture from bank 546 1,587

- On term loan and non convertible debenture from financial institution 1,654 167

- On Securitised borrowings 162 155

Security deposit from customers 3,193 3,107

Employee payables 804 1,295

Capital creditors 146 258

Advances received from customer 4,714 4,111
Total 11,219 10,680

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 17: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits

- Compensated shsenses [Refer note 31} 226 293

- Gratuity {Refer note 31) 53 27
Provision for [oan commitment 3 5
Provision for sales tax and service tax {Refer note 34 (B}) 2,917 2,781
Provision for customer disputes (Refer note 34 (B}) 49 49
Provision for CSR Expenses 123 56
Qther Provisions 14 -
Total 3,334 3,211

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 18: Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 2,018 1,472
Lease rental accrued but not due - 13
Others 630 705
Total 2,648 2,190




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unfess stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 19: Equity Share Capital
Authorized share Capital

2,160,000,000 {31 March 2021: 2,160,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 2,16,000 2,16,000

2,16,000 2,16,000

issued , Subscribed & Paid up capital

Issued Capital .
1,439,534,594 (31 March 2021: 1,439,534,594) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 1,43,953 1,43,953

Subscribed, Called-Up and Paid Up Capital
Fully Paid-Up 1,43,595 1,43,599
1,435,993,543 (31 March 2021: 1,435,993,543} Equity Shares of INR 10/- each

Total | 1,43,599 1,43,599
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consclidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount iri INR lacs, except for share data uniess stoted otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2022 .31 March 2021

Note 20: Other equity
Capital reserve
Opening balance 121 121
Addition/(Deduction) - -
Closing balance 121 121
Capital reserve created pursuant to merger
Opening kalance 4,000 4,000
Addition/{Daduction) - -
Closing balance 4,000 4,000
Statutory reserve
Opening balance 23,081 22,839
Tranfer from retained easnings (Profits of Clix Housing Finance Limited transferred from retained earnings) 53 242
Closing balance 23,134 23,081
Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares
QOpening balance 11,880 11,880
Transfer from retained earnings - -
Closing balance 11,880 11,880
Shara based payment reserve
Opening balance 654 662
Addition/{Deductian) 453 (8)
Closing balance 1,107 654
Share premium

Opening balante 10,304 8,145

Addition/{Deduction) - 2,159

Closing balance 16,304 10,304
Ratained earnings
Opening balance 14,532 13,435
Profit/ {loss) for the year (9,847) 1,286
Remeasurement of_ gains en defined employee benefit plans, net of tax 53 53
Transfer to statutory reserves (Profits of Clix Housing Finance Limited transferred to statutory reserves) (53) (242)
Closing balance 4,685 14,532
Total 55,231 64,572




(a)

{b)

{c)

(d)

le)

{f)

(8)

Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR Jacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Capital reserve: Till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group was not required to pay any amount to the General Electric Company, USA (then
ultimate helding company) towards the cost of options granted or shares allotted to the employees of the Group under these share based
compensation plans, Therefore, till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group recognized share based compensation in the Statement of Profit and
Loss with a corresponding credit to Capital Reserve Account (Share Options Outstanding Account). There is no corresponding liability for the same
and therefore same is in the nature of free reserve.

Capltal reserve created pursuant to marger: During the financial year 2012-13, Maruti Countrywide Auto Financial Services Private Limited
{MCW) was amalgamated with GE Money Financial Services Private Limited (GEMFSPL) pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. Upon the
Scheme hecoming effective, the entire amount of authorised share capital of the transferor company amounting to INR 4,000 divided into
40,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each got transfarred from the authorised share capital to the authorised share capital of GEMFSPL. as equity
shares and Capital Reserve of INR 4,000 was created during the year ended 31 March 2013,

Statutory reserve: Statutory resetve represents the reserve fund created under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and reserve
fund created under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 . Under aforementioned Sections, the Group is required to transfer sum
not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year. Although the Group has incurred losses on a consclidated fevel in current (inancial year,
the Group has transferred INR 53 {31 March 2021: INR 242), being twenty percent of net profits generated by Clix Housing Finance Limited, its
wholly owned subsidiary,for the financial year to the statutory reserve. The statutory resetve can be utilised for the purposes as specified by the
Reserve Bank of India and National Housing Bank from time to time. '

Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares: During the year ended March 2017, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 4
November 2016 approved buy back 118,803,425 equity shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Helding Company at a price of INR 12.7
per fully paid equity share from shareholders. The total number of equity shares of 118,803,425 were purchased by the Holding Company under
the offer of buy back for a consideration of INR 15,088.

Securities premium: Securities premium reserve is used to recerd the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes such as issuance of benus shares in accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share hased payment reserve: The share based payment reserve Is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share based payments provided
te employees and its subsidiary's employees, including key managerial personnel, as part of their remuneration,

Retained earnings: These represent the surplus in the profit and loss account and Is free for distribution of dividend.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share date unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2621
Note 21: Interest income
On financlol assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans
- On term loans 54,688 65,300
- On finance [ease receivables 1,074 1,460
Interest income on debt securities - 1,530
Total {A) Gross 55,762 68,290
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 22: Fees and commission
Credit compliance and debt advisory fees (refer note 38) - 462
Application fees 36 30
Insurance commission (refer note 38) 23 53
Other charges 3,384 2,186
' 3,443 2,731
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 23: Net gain/ (loss) on falr value changes
(A) Net gain/ {loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i) On trading portfolic
- Investments 2,224 664
{ii) On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or foss 731 {129)
Total Net gain on fair value changes {A} 2,955 535
(B) Fair value changes:
-Realised 2,286 550
~Unrealised 669 {15)
Total Net gain on fair value changes(A} to tally with (B) 2,955 535
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 24: Other income
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back 102 335
interest income
- on income tax refund 1,456 2,030
- on fixed deposits 733 759
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit 140 193
Accrued redemption premium on preference share - 26
Met gainf{loss) on derecognition of property, plant and equipment (3) 219
Miscellaneous Income 186 738
Total 2,614 4,300




Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share dato unless stated otherwise)}

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 25: Finance costs
At amortised cost
Interast on borrowings (other than debt securities)

- Term loan from banks 8,269 14,216

- Term loan from financial institutions 4,028 807

- On bank overdraft 281 388

- Inter-carporate loans - 31

- Other interests 154 2

- Securitised borrowing 4,443 1,789
Bank charges 1 6
Interest on debt securities .

~ Discount on commercial papers 445 -

- Non convertible debentures 11,334 16,863
Unwinding of disccunt on security deposits 140 180
Interest an Lease liability 153 260
Total 29,248 34,542

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 26: Impairment on financial Instruments
At amortised cost .

ECL on loan assets - (934) 13,851

£CL on other financial assets 239 77

Bad debt writien off/recovered* 28,302 9,679

Investments 1,510 {55)

Loan commitment - 5

Total 29,117 23,557

*includes loss on sale of finance lease amounting to INR 173 (31 March 2021 : Nil}.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 27: Employee benefits expenses :

Salaries and bonus 7,406 9,044

Share hased payments to employees (Refer note 44) 453 (8)

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 31) 435 482

Staff welfare expenses 33 35

Total 8,377 9,553




Clix Capital Services Pri\réte Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 28: Other expenses
Rent 416 368
Rates and taxes 449 131
Printing and stationery 24 81
Advertisements and sales promotion 335 157
Legal and professional charges® 4,328 3,082
CSR expense (Refer note 41) 92 56
Outsourced service cost 2,515 1,501
Postage, telegrams and telephones 100 80
Travelling and conveyance 230 51
Repairs and maintenance 259 337
Insurance 260 343
Electricity and water charges 35 30
Miscellaneaus expenses 166 137
Total 9,209 6,354
* Lagal and professional charges includes payment to auditors {excluding goods and service tax) comprises the following:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As auditor
- Statutory audit 38 50
- Limited Review 11 8
- Tax audit 3 6
- Other services 10 39
Reimbursement of expenses 2 3
Total 64 106




Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Notes to Consolldated FEnancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 29; Income tax

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021are:

Profit or loss section

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 16 2,754

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 14) 67

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,048) (2,176}
Adjustmants In respect of Deferred tax recognised for previous year 26 3

Incama tax expense reparted in the statement of profit or loss 13,010) 648

Current tax 12 2,821

Deferred tax {3,022) {2,173)

Year ended Year ended

Other comprehensive income section

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferred tax:

Relating to orgination and reversal of temperary differences
Income tax expense reported In the other comprehenslve section

Incoma tax expense reported In the statement of profit and loss

13 16
13 16
{2957} 661

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021

Particulars

Year ended Year endad
31 March 2022 31 Maych 2021

Accounting profit/{loss) before income tax

Tax at applicable statutory income tax rate [A)
Adjustment in respect of Current tax of previous year (B)
Non-deductible expenses (C)

tmpact due torate diffsrence on timing items/previous year true up (D)

Income tax expense reported In the profit or loss section (A+B+C+D)
Other Comprehensive Incofne

Tax at statutory Income tax rate (E )

Impact due to rate difference on timing items/previous year true up (F)

Impact due to non recagnistion of DTA on timing difference {G)
Tax impact reported on Other Comprehensive Income {E+F+G)

Deferred Tax

[12,857) 1,934
{3,043) 403
() 67

81 76
(24) 102
{3,010) 648
66 69

17 19

- 2

4 ]

13 16

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Deferrad tax Defarred tax  Net deferred tax Income
assets liability asset / ocl
fabiliies) ~ Srotement
Asat As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Praperty, plant and equipment 7,695 - 7,695 {331) -
ECL on Loan and advances/ Investmenty Loan commitmant 6,107 - 6,106 285 -
Pravislon for expense 348 - 348 (3} -
438 Disallewance 68 - 68 {30} -
Unabsorbed loss 3,456 - 3,456 3,455 -
Others 1,154 - 1,154 172 -
Unamortised cast {net of unamartised fees} - (988} {988) (540) -
Remeasuremant of defined benefit llability - - - 13 (13)
18,328 [988) 17,839 3,022 [23)
Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
assets liab#ity asset / Income [o14]]
{liabilitlas) statement
Asat : As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Property, plant and equipment 8,026 - 8,026 (261) -
EC!. on Loan and agvances/ Investment/ Lean commitment 5,820 - 5,820 3,428 -
Provision for axpense 351 - 351 {134} -
43B Disallowance o8 N 98 {92} -
Unabsorbed loss - - - {1,107} -
Others 983 - $83 10 -
Unamortised cost [net of unamortised fees) - {448) (448) 373 -
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability - - - 16 (16)
15,278 {448} 14,830 2,173 {16)




Clix Capital Services Prlvate Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Alf amount in iNR lacs, except for share data uniess stated otherwise)

Note 30: Earning per share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit/{loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit/{loss) attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares inte ordinary shares,

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 34 March 2021
Following reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic
Weighted average numbker of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS (in lacs) 14,360 14,176
Met profit/(loss) for calculation of Basic EPS (INR} (9,847) 1,286
Basic earning per share {In INR} {0.69) 0.09
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 14,749 14,227
Net profit/(loss) for calculation of Diluted EPS (1NR) {9,847) 1,286
Diluted earning per share {In INR} {0.69)* 0.09

*As the weighted average number of shares for diluted EPS are anti-dilutive and resulting in increase in dilutive €PS, diluted EPS has been kept
same as basic EPS.

2

Nominal / Face Value of equity shares {In INR} 10 10

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year endad 31 March 2022 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

Basic . Diluted
Equity shares of foce value of INR 10 per share
Opening 14,360 14,227
Additions - 522
Closing , 14,360 14,749

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2021 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

Basic Diluted
Equity shares of fuce vaiue of INR 10 per share
Qpening 13,523 13,548
Additions 653 679
Closing . 14,176 14,227
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Clix Capital $ervices Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2622
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share dota unless stated otherwise)

Note 32:Segment information

The Group’s primary business segment is reflected based on the principal business carried out, i.e. Commercial financing
{comprising corporate loans, finance lease and operating leases), Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is
required to be made in the financial statements of the Group. The Group operates principally within India and does not have
operations in aconomic environments with different risks and returns; hence, it is considered operating in single geographical
segment.

The Group is not reliant on revenues from transactions with any single external customer and does not receive 10% or mare of its
revenues from transactions with any single external customer,

Note 33. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Isarticulars ) 1April 2021  Cash flows Changes in Exchange Other* 31 March 2022
fair values difference

Debt securities 1,38,381 (59,697} - - (59) 78,625

Borrowings other than debt securitie_s" 1,66,582 - 28,168 - - 474 1,95,225 :he

Total liabilities from financing activities 3,04,963 (31,528} - - 415 2,73,850

Particulars 1 April 2020 Cash flows Changes in Exchange Other 31 March 2021

fair values difference

Debt securities 1,59,300 (20,680} ; . (239) 1,38,381
Borrowings other than debt sacurities” 1,83,702 {17,901} - - 781 1,66,582
Total liabilities from financing activities 3,43,002 (38,581) - - 542 3,04,963

* Others column includes amortisation of transaction cost.
# Excluding bank overdraft which is included in cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flow.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share dato uniess stoted otherwise)

Note 34: Contlngent liabilities, provisions and commitments
To meet the financial needs of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocakle commitments, which primarily consist of undrawn
commitment to lend. Further the Group is also exposed to contingent liabilities arising from legal claims.

Contingent liabilities

Claims against Group not acknowledged as dabts

The Group’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Group by the customers and pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax,
Excise, Custom, Sales/ YAT tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided far where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, In its financial statements. The Group does
not expect the outcome of these proceedings te have a materially adverse effect on its financial results,

Claims against the Greup not acknowledged as debts amounts to INR 468 (previous year INR 468). These relate to lawsuits, claims,
investigations and proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of business and includes amounts litigated against the Group net of amount
provided for contingencies. While the ultimate liability cannot be ascertained at this time, based on facts currently available and s current
knowledge of the applicable law, management believes that the cases will not have a material adverse affect on the Group’s financial
statements or its business operations,

-Based on demand notices received from the inceme tax department and indirect tax authorities, the Group is contingently fiable for INR 3,812

{Previous year INR 3,869 ). The Group has challenged these demands of the respective authorities. While the ultimate outcome of the above
mentioned appeals cannot be ascertained at this time, based on current knowledge of the applicable law, management believes that these law
suits should not have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial statements or its business operations.

The Group has given corhorate guarantees to Banks on behalf of its subsidiary. The total of such guarantees as on 31 March 2022 amounts to
INR 5,669 (31 March 2021 §,192)

Provisions

The disclosure of provisions movemant for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows :-

Nature of provision Opening Addition Reversal/ Closing

- utilisation
Provision for sales tax and service tax 2,781 156 (20} 2,917
Provision for customer disputes 49 - - 49
Total : 2,830 156 {20) 2,966

The disclosure of provisions movement for the year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows:-

Nature of provision . Opening Addition Reversal/ Closing
utilisation

Provision for sales tax and service tax ‘ 2,789 (8) - 2,781

Provision for customer disputes 48 - ) 49

Total 2,838 (8) - 2,830

Nature of provisions:
Provision for sales tax and service tax: The Group has recognised provisions on account of estimated potential losses arising out of its inability
1o recover indirect tax related amounts from clients and other litigation with various sales tax/service tax aithorities.

Provision for disputes with clients: The Group has recognised provision for settlement of certain disputes with its customers.

Commitment
{i) The Group has a capital commitment of INR 207 as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 153)
(ti) The Group has a revocable loan commitment of INR 5,038 towards undrawn loan sanctions as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 7,939).
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Note 35: Related party disclosures

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given balow:

{a) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:
Particulars Relationship
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited {(Mauritius} Holding Company
Clix Analytics Private Limited (under liquidation w.e.f. 23 August 2021) ’ Fellow Subsidiaries
Clix Loans Private Limited (under liquidation w.e.f. 14 August 2021) Fellow Subsidiaries
GE Money Financial Services Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Scheme - Post employerment benefit plan
GE Capital Employee Gratuity Fund Post employement benefit plan
Iiey managerlal personnel
Rakesh Kaul (From 16 August 2021} Chief Executive Officar (CEQ)
Rashmi Mohanty Whole-time Diractor and Chief

: Financial Officer (CFO)

Ashhish K Paanday Company Secretary
Bhavesh Gupta (Till 31 July 2020} Chief Executive Officer {CEQ}

(b) The nature and volume of transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of business are as follows :

1. Remuneration to key managerial personnel*

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Short term employee benefits 477 378
Post employment benefits 319 5
796 403

* The remuneration given to key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefit, as they
are determined on actuarial basls for the Group as a whole,

2, Other transactions

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Amount Amount paid | Amount received | Amount paid
received

Interest pn inter corporate foan
Clix Analytics Private Limited - - - 31

Services taken
Clix Analytics Private Limited - - - 20

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital
Plutus Financials Private Limited (Mauritius) - - 5,000 -

Contribution made to post employment benefit plan

GE Money Financial Services Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity 10
Schame - - -
GE Capital Employee Gratuity Fund - - R 10

Inter corparate foans
Taken
Clix Analytics Private Limited - - 800 -

Repaid
Clix Analytics Private Limited - - - 300
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Note 36: Capital management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital Includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable
te the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group’s caplial management Is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions and the raguirements of the financial
covenants. The Group monitors capital using a capital adequacy ratio and debt equity ratio.

The actual debt equity ratio is as under:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Dehts ) 2,78,273 3,10,026
Net worth 1,98,830 2,08,171

1.40 1.49

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst cther things, aims to ensure that it mests financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and horrowings.

Mo changes were made In the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
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Note 37. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
refer note 13

Note 38: Revenue from contracts with customers

Credit compliance and debt advisory fees

The performance obligation in regards of arrangements where fees is charged per transaction executed is recognised at point in time
when trade is executed. In other arrangements, where fees is fixed irrespective of number of transaction executed is recognised over the
term of contract.

Insurance commission
The performance obligation in regards of insurance arrangements are recognised upoen issue of the insurance policy .

Year ended Year ended

Particular '
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Type of services or service

Credit compliance and debt advisory fees - 4572
Insurance commission 23 53
Total revenue from contracts with customers - 23 515

Geographical markets

India 23 515
Cutside India ) i
Total revenue from contracts with customers 23 515

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time - 23 515
Services transferred over time - - .
Total revenue from contracts with customers ' 23 515

Infarmation about group’s performance obligation

The perfermance chligation in regards of arrangements where the above fees is charged per transaction executed is recognised at point in
tima when transaction is executed.
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Note 40: Risk Management

40.1 Intraduction and risk profile

Whilst risk is inharent in the Group's aclivities, it is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other centrols. This process of risk management is critical to the
Group’s continuing profitabllity and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
responsihilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market risk. It is alse subject to various operating
and businass risks. ’

40,1.1 Risk management struture and policies

The Board of Directors are responsiblé for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and
principlas, The Risk Management Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing
principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk
levels and revorts to the Board.

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implamenting and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent control
process is maintained. The unit works closely with and reports to the Risk Management Commitiee, to ensure that procedures are
compliant with the gverall framewark.

The Unit is also responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across the Group. Each business group has its
own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including monitoring the actual risk of exposures against authorised limits and the
assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions. The Group's treasury function is responsibie for managing its assets and
liabilities and the overall financlal structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Group.

40.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations.
The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for
geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk
department of the Group’s independent Risk mangament Unit. It is their responsibility to review and manage credit risk. It has a diversified
lending model and focuses on four broad categories viz: {i) Healthcare and other equipment finance (i) Lease finance, (iii) SME and
Consumer finance, {iv) loan against securities/ properties and (v} Corporate lending. The Group assesses the credit quality of all financial
instruments that are subject to cradit risk.
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40.2.1 Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum expesure to credit sk was INR 3,88,093
and INR 415,811 as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances and other financial

assets.,

The table below summarises the approach adopted by the Group for various components of ECL viz. PD(Probability of default}, EAD
(Exposure at default) and LGD (Loss given default) across product lines using emperical data where relevant:

Lending Verticals PD EAD LGD
Stage 1 | Stage 2 Stage 3

Internal Matrix based on CRISIL Default
Study Report or Model suggested by CRISIL

Corporate Partfolio including Industry risk, husiness risk, L:?;glalI:g;Zr:tzgtzd ::J::;i on
financials risk & management risk but not \ . i or
limited to or or its Equivalent and Its Equivalent
management estimata
For the horrowers, where credit ratings are
available, PD default rate as per the CRISIL

Leases defaulf study report is being considered. For|
other borrowers, PD rate is based on Based on FIRB rates using
average PD as per CRISIL defauli study EADis computed |average LGD applicable to
Report applicable from AAA to BB. based on past  |Secured exposures

. trends of

Used Cars Based on indu-stry b{'anchmarks [ credit 100% propo-rtion of

hureau reports like Static Pool etc. outstanding at time
of default to the

Based on past defaults. outstandingon |Based on past trends of

LAEP

Personal Loan

Based on industry benchmarks / credit
bureau reports like Static Pool/ Internal
Performance etc.

Business Loan

Two Wheeler

Based on industry benchmarks / credit
bureau reports like Static Pool/ Internal
Performance etc.

Loan Against Property

Based on management estimate.

HFS {Health Care) and othef
Equipment Finance

Based on industry benchmarks / credit
bureau reports like Static Pool etc.

reporting date

recoveries

Based on FIRB rates using
average LGD applicable to
unsecured exposures

Based on management
estimate

Based on past trends of
recoverias
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40.2.2 Analysis of risk concentration

The Group’s concentrations of risk for loans are managed by type of loan- Corporate and Retail.
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Industry portfolio

- Airlines & related services 582 2,622
- FMICG : 398 2,063
- Hotels & Restaurants : 947 11,671
- Infrastructure - 3,790
- Media and entertainment - 8,430
- Manufacturing 7,461 14,503
- Real estate 2,A76 5,535
- Engineering, procurement, construction - 2,674
- Financial services 2,617 10,504
- Education 2,478 3,531
- Auto Ancillary 2,500 4,151
-IT 2,976 3,631
' 22,435 73,105
Retails
(A) Sub-portfolio
- Housing Loan 14,130 15,145
- Loan against Property 65,754 58,956
- Hire / Info lease/ finance laase 7,136 10,332
- Healthcare and equipment finance 32,440 37,836
~ Business Loan 1,33,471 ' 47,204
- Parsonal loans . 85,855 1,53,939
- Consumer Durables - 2
- Loan against electronic payahles 2,235 6,856
- Supply Chain - - 453
- Used cars 203 606
= Two Wheeler 2,171 9,786
3,43,395 3,41,115
{B) Secured/ Unsecured
- Secured 1,21,835 1,32,660
- Unsecured 2,21,560 2,08,455
3,43,395 3,41,115
Total . 3,65,830 4,14,220

40.2.3 Impact of COVID-19

COVID-19 a global pandemic, which spread across the world with India not being an exception and has coniributed to a
significant volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a unprecedent level of disruption on soclo-economic activitles.
Based on the information available till date, the Group has used the principles of prudence to provide for the impact of the
pandemic on the Financial Statemenis specifically while assessing the expected credit loss on financial assets. This has
resulted in an overall impairment loss allowance of INR 22,743 as of 31 March 2022,




LES'EE'Y v6T'1I 0L0'C ELTaras ST6°L0'% TLEEE'S orTe 878 £6'ST YovyiLo'e [Eale ]
¥l il - - - zes z€8 - - - SIERA § SAA0
£6£°0T 158 81 - 85£'5T 006'6T 65T - - TFS'8T s1RA § 01 1BBA € 13A0
PEDBLT ELFT SLTT - 98€'6.'T PET'SET 2EL ST - T86'EET SIE2A £ 03 1B3A T 12A0
QECPET 9618 iTL 89ZCT TLTETT SOSLLT 129 €9t EP6'ST 788vST JEA T UBY] 553

SUUNQEY (5511aN295 {sannaas
[epueuld Aupgen 1qep Sulprjaur} saugel Aupgen 14ep Buipnipul) siejnopIeg
[e301 BYID asesy sa[qehieg s8uimoasog 12101 [eruELY JB Y0 asea sa|eied sSuimoslog )
TZOZ YIJBIN TE 20T Y2en 1€

‘00T 4o 22uepIng ayl Jepun wesy Ainseauy s dnolg su Aq peBeusws i ysl Apinky
‘dnoap sy} AQ pauleiulew s1agng Apinbi ays ynm sded ajgeqoud Supedwon pue souRURIS 41 1BYM, Paliea Sulwnsse s1$a1 55a1s pue wolusod Aypinbiy aul 01 Buiiejad Qv A smatadd aipoliad Aq padeuew st sl Alpinbn

. "S3NIKIEN PUE S1955€ |BIOURLIL JO sS[uaLd Auniew au) SUymew Ag pue Smofi YSED [BN1IE PUE ISE38.0]

Burroljuow Ajsnonupuoa Ag ‘SaRi|DE} 1PAII UMEIPUR pUB SaAJasal Uysed azenbape Suluieluiews Ag ysu Aupinbily seeuew dnoig sy “aoud s|geuoseal 812 pue ssuuew A|pwn e uy uonisod e epinbif 0] siqeun Sulag Jo ¥su
2u1 pue Ayuniew sieudosdde au 1e onjoarod 13sse UR Suipuny f0 1502 A4 LI 3SERIIUI palladxaun Syl WOl 95UE ABUS ¥SLI SIUL "S3IfIgRl pue s12sse dnoud Jo spuosd AlUneud 2yl Ul S0UJLHP B AQ pISNED YIIBWSIW {AY)

1uawsBeuey ANjel] 19SSy LB 208} ABLI AIJUBINSS $S3UISNG 10 UImold Jsyling pue Saniigelf |2izueuy 3yl Aedal 01 24nUs1 SNUJLLIRI-0D pUe 1503 WNWRdo 1. Spuny Jo 1uNoWe 1enbape Jo AljIge[leARUN 3YL WUSWRINDIU
Jad se 3sn Jof S|gejIEAR 31E SpUN} Y] 3Insul pue Aupinbi| JusLIns tigluIEw 01 S1uswaBeue L ys1 Aupinbr o aanzalqo sy suonedigo _m_u.:mcm $1 138W Jou ued dnoin 3yl 1BYL HSU Byl 01 S1a3d ysiy Aupinbn

st Aupinbn 0y

(351M12470 PIIDIS SSIJUN DINP 240YS J0f 1d23x2 ‘SI0f YN| UT JURGLUD |iy)
2207 Yddep] TE PRPUS JEIA SU] JOJ SIUSWIELS [EIFUBULS PRIBPIIOSUO) 0} SDION
pagwry dlenud $3IA8S jesided XD




Clix Capltal Sevvices Private Limited
Notes to Cansolidated Financlal Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
(Al armount in INR locs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil fluctuate because of changes In market
factors. Such changes in the values of finandial Instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other
market charnges. The Groups’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk,

Interest rate risk

The Group is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customers at rates and for maturity perlods that may differ from
funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of of the Reserve
Bank of Indta, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and
other facters. In order to manage interest rate risk, the Group seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term
‘loans, The Group adopts funding strategfes to ensure diversified resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of
funds. Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management
Committee supervise an interest rate sensltivity report pericdically for assassment of interest rate isks,

The Group mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
Interest vate sensitivity

The following table demanstrates the sensitivity to a reasenably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of
the Group’s statement of profit and loss:

(a) Loans {floating)

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Basis points Effect on proflt  Basis points Effect on profit
before tax hefore tax
Increase in basis points 50 433 50 848
Decrease In basis points -50 (433} -50 {848)
(b) Borrowings (floating)
o Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Basis paints Eifect on profit  Basls points Effact on profit
before tax before tax
Increase In basis points - 50 (562) 50 {604)
Decrease in basis points 50 . 562 -50 604
{c) Debt Securities {floating)
Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars . Basis points Eifect on Proflt  Basls points Effect on Profit
hefore tax before tax
Increase in basis points 50 (259) 50 {391)
Decrease in basis points 50 258 -50 391

Equlity price risk

The Groug's listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and totat
equity instruments. Regorts on the equity porifolio are submitted to the Group’s senicr management an a regular basis, The Group’s
Board of Directors reviews apd approves all equity investment dedsions,

Equlty price sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in Equity prices (all other vartables being constant) of
the Group’s statement of profit and loss:

{a) investment In units of Mutual Fund

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Particutars % Effect on profit % Effect on profit
before tax before tax
Increase in NAY 0.5 13t 0.5 242
Dacrease in NAY -0.5 (111} 0.5 {242)
{b) Investment in Equity shares
Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars % Effect on Profit % Effect on Profit
before tax before tax
Increase in market price -0.5 8 -0.5 5

Decraase in market price 0.5 8) 0.5 (5)
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Note 41. Corporate social responsibility

Particulars
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(a) amount required to be spent by the Group
during the year 92 56
(b) amount of expenditure incurred*** {(25) -
(c} shortfall at the end of the year® 123 56
(¢} total of previous years shortfall 31 -
(e) reason for shortfall**
(f} nature of CSR activities Covide-19 and
healthcare related
activites -

{g) Details of related party transactions "NA NA
(h) where a provision is made with respect to a
liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation. - -
Opening provision balance 56 -

Provision created during the vear 94 20

Provision utilized during the year (25) -
Closing provision balance ' 123 56

*Including previous year shortfall INR 31

**The Group during the year had contributed towards the ongoing projects to covid-19 and
health care and a portion of the allocated money remained unspent as on March 31, 2022. The
Group proposes to spend this money on healthcare facilities and services with a long term impact
to the community. The unspent amount has been transferred to a separate Bank account and will
be spent in the next three Financial years.

*#* Pertain to Financial year 2020-21

Note 42. Expenditure in foreign currency

] Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Legal and professional 848 643
248 bd3

Note 43. Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

The Group does not have exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated assets (trade
receivable) not hedged as at 31 March 2022 by derivative instruments or otherwise. {31 March
2021: USD Nil {INR Nil}]. The Group have exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated
liabilities (trade payable) is USD 2 (INR 177) [31 March 2021: USD 4 (INR 270) ].
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 45 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according te when they are expected to be recoverad or settled, With regard to loans
and advances to customers, the Group uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR. Issued debt reflect the

contractual coupon amaortisations:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
Assets Total Total
months months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 28,725 28,725 11,204 11,204
Bank balance other than (a) above 17,648 - 17,648 12,330 - 12,330
Loans 1,74,912 1,68,175 3,43,087 1,83,322 2,07,223 3,90,545
Investments 23,697 18,118 41,815 49,425 - 49,425
Other financial assets 347 2,288 2,635 4,058 1,533 5,591
Non-financial Assets
Current tax asset - 6,044 6,044 5,087 5,087
Deferred tax assets {net) - 17,839 17,839 14,830 14,830
Property, Plant and Equipment - 5,404 5,404 10,519 10,519
Intangible assets under development - 793 793 478 478
Goodwilll - 36,768 36,768 - 36,768 36,768
Other intangible assets - 2,382 2,382 - 3,467 3,467
Right of use assets - 533 593 - 1,436 1,436
Other non-financial assets 1,153 3,341 4,494 1,811 2,372 4,183
Assets held for sale 505 - 505 511 - 511
Total Assets 2,46,987 2,61,745 5,08,732 2,62,661 2,83,713 5,46,374
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabifities
Payables
1) Trade payables - 7,687 - 7,687
a) Tetal autstanding duas of micro enterprises
& small enterprises
h) Tatal f)utstandlng.dues of creditors u'ther 8,139 ) 8,139 A568 4,568
than micre enterprises & small enterprises
11} Other payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro entarprises
& smalf enterprises 37 37
b) Total cutstanding dues of creditors other
than micre enterprises & small enterprises 7,769 ~ 7,769 72,414 65,567 1,38,381
Debt securities 25,936 52,689 _ 78,625
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,12,254 85,032 1,97,286 84,793 84,943 1,69,736
Lease Liabilities 332 463 795 606 1,144 1,750
Other financial liabilities 8,517 2,702 11,219 8,136 2,544 10,680
Non-Financial Liahilities
Provisicns 218 3,166 3,384 173 3,038 3,211
Other non-financial Liabilities 2,165 483 2,648 1,619 571 2,190
Total liabilities 1,65,367 1,44,535 3,09,902 1,79,997 1,58,206 3,38,203
Net 81,620 1,17,210 1,98,830 75,747 1,32,424 2,08,171
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Ail amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

47 The Group has not undertaken any transactions with any company whose name is struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

48 The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financlal years ended 31 Maréh 2022 and 31 March
2021, ’

£9 No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benam! property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the financlal years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

50 The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other fender during the financlal years ended 31
March 31 2022 and 31 March 2021,

51 All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021. No charges cr satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statuiory period.

52 No funds have been advanced cr loaned or investad {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to cr in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“ntermediaries”) with the understanding, whether
_recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate
beneficlaries). The Company has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or eniitles identlfied by or on behalf of the funding party {"Ultimate
beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

53 The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

54 There have been ne events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements (31 March 2021 INR Nif)




55 During the current financial year, the Beard of Directors of the Holding Company, In its meeting dated 04 June 2021, had approved a

5

(-3

scheme of amalgamation {"the Scheme”) with Clix Finance India Private Limited, cne of its whelly owned subsidiary company into the
Holding Company. The Scheme has been approved by the Central Government {Regional Director, Northern Region) on 25 March 2022 with
effect from 01 April 2021 ("Appointed Date”) and pursuant to the Scheme, the Holding Company has filed the said Order of Central
Government {Reglonal Director, Northern region) approving the scheme of Amalgamation with the Registrar on 01 April 2022 (“Effective
Date”). The said amalgamatiion has been accounted for as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 "Business Coembination”,

The Transferee Company (Clix Capital Services Private Limited), on the scheme becoming effective, from the appointed date, recorded all
the assets (including Goodwill amounting te Rs.36,768) and liabilities of the Transferor Company (Clix Finance india Private Limlted) vested
in it pursuant to this Scheme, at thelr carrying amounts and in the same form as recorded/appearing in the consolidated financial
statements of the Transferee Company as on the date immediataly before the appointed date and prepared in accordance with Appendix C
of Indian Accounting Standard 103, Business Combination. Accordingly, there is no change in the figures of the consclidated financial
statements and notes forming part thereof for the year ended 31 March 2021 as restated by the Management to give effect of the said
amalgamation.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever applicable.

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration No, 103523W/W 100048 Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants RIS

,

Kunj B. Agrawal
Partner
Membership No.: 095829

-

Rakesh Kaui Rashini Mohanty
Chief Executive Officer 'CFC and Whole Time Director
DIN: 03386665 BiN: 07072541 ]

Place: New Delhi

Date: 30 May 2022 %

Ashhish I Paanday
Company Secretary
Membership No: A23155

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 May 2022




